
From: Hill, Richard W.
To: Fick, Mackinzey
Subject: RE: CON 6205 NS
Date: Monday, May 19, 2025 8:24:17 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Mackinzey:
 
Understood on the occupancy.
 
We agree with your result from the base MHFRC analysis as set forth in the regulations.
Notwithstanding, as shown in our application, we’re proposing an alternative need methodology
that has been accepted by the Committee in the past.
 
Thanks!
 
Rich
 
RICHARD W. HILL
Attorney at Law
DIRECT: 314 436.8317
CELL: 314 749 2396
rhill@lashlybaer.com
Licensed in Missouri
 

L A S H L Y  &  B A E R ,  P . C .
Attorneys at Law

714 Locust Street   St. Louis, MO 63101-1699   TEL: 314 621.2939
20 East Main Street    Belleville, IL 62220-1602   TEL: 618 233.5587

FAX: 314 621.6844   www.lashlybaer.com

THIS ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION IS PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL AND OTHERWISE LEGALLY PROTECTED
INFORMATION FROM THE LAW FIRM OF LASHLY & BAER, P.C. The information contained in this communication and
any attachments is intended solely for use by the addressee(s). If this was erroneously sent to you, please notify us immediately by
reply email or by telephone at 314-621-2939 and permanently delete this communication including any electronic or printed
versions and attachments. Electronic communications are not secure. Please advise if you do not wish to receive electronic
communications in the future. Click here for additional disclaimers.
Please consider the environment before printing this email.
 
From: Fick, Mackinzey <Mackinzey.Fick@health.mo.gov> 
Sent: Friday, May 16, 2025 3:31 PM
To: Hill, Richard W. <RHill@lashlybaer.com>
Subject: RE: CON 6205 NS
Importance: High

 
Rich,
 
Thank you for this information. As of now, I do not have any additional questions, however I do
want to note that year 1 will be based on 366 days as 2028 is a leap year.
 
Additionally, we reviewed the population-based need calculation presented in the CON
application and agree with your population findings of 9,289. We agree with your number of beds
in the applicants 15-mile radius. Therefore, we calculated a bed surplus of 27 ICF/SNF beds
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within 15 miles of the site. Let me know if you agree or disagree with our findings.
 

This information is needed by Friday, May 23rd, 2025.
 
 

Mackinzey Fick
 

Assistant Program Coordinator
Certificate of Need Agency :
http://health.mo.gov/information/boards/certificateofneed/index.php
Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services
  920 Wildwood Drive, Jefferson City, MO. 65102

*: mackinzey.fick@health.mo.gov | (: 573-751-6403
 

This email is from the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services.  It contains confidential or
privileged information that may be protected from disclosure by law.  Unauthorized disclosure, review,
copying, distribution, or use of this message or its contents by anyone other than the intended recipient is
prohibited.  If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately destroy this message and notify the
sender at the following email address: mackinzey.fick@health.mo.gov or by calling (573) 751-6403. 

 
 
From: Hill, Richard W. <RHill@lashlybaer.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 16, 2025 2:21 PM
To: Fick, Mackinzey <Mackinzey.Fick@health.mo.gov>
Subject: RE: CON 6205 NS

 
Mackinzey:
 
Please see below in red. Thanks!
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, May 13, 2025 9:35 AM
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To: Hill, Richard W. <RHill@lashlybaer.com>
Subject: CON 6205 NS
Importance: High

 
Rich,
 
After review of the application, some additional information is needed.
 

Provide 3rd party documents or methods/assumptions for the site development costs. The site
development costs were provided by Tim Fleeman Construction, which is a third party project
management company. See page 7 of the application for the quote document provided by Tim
Fleeman Construction.

 
The project is for 85 beds however the description states 65 private and 20 semi-private. Please
advise. Page 15 of the application indicates that there will be a “20 semi-private bed memory care
unit.” There are ten semi-private rooms in the specialized unit, each with two beds. Please see
page 22 of the application and the 600 wing.

 
On the schematics, wing 200 states 10 beds, however I count 12. Please advise. You are correct –
I believe the architect mislabeled the 200 wing. That label should indicate that there are 12 beds
in that wing.

 
The utilization for year 1 after project completion 15,489 however the revenues and expenses
form states 15,498. These should be the same. Provide an updated utilization numbers or a
updated revenues and expenses form. I must have mis-keyed in the information on page 16 of
the application. The correct year 1 occupancy should be 15,498 resident days, which corresponds
to an occupancy percentage of 50.0% [15,498 / (365 * 85)].

 

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

 
 
 

Disclaimer
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From: Jay Frances
To: CONP CONP
Subject: CON Opposition - Poplar Bluff, MO, Butler County
Date: Thursday, April 17, 2025 11:14:54 AM

Preserve Quality and Stability: Oppose Unnecessary Expansion of Skilled Nursing Beds in
Poplar Bluff

Context: Poplar Bluff, located in Butler County, Missouri, currently hosts multiple skilled
nursing facilities. The area has been identified as overbedded, indicating that the existing
capacity meets or exceeds the community's needs. Introducing additional beds through a new
facility could have unintended consequences.

Key Considerations:

1. Economic Impact on Existing Facilities:

Financial Strain: Existing facilities have made significant investments based
on current demand projections. Introducing new competition in an already
saturated market can dilute occupancy rates, leading to financial instability.

Risk of Closure: Reduced occupancy can jeopardize the viability of current
providers, potentially leading to closures and job losses, which would
negatively affect the local economy.

2. Quality of Care Concerns:

Staffing Challenges: An oversupply of beds can exacerbate staffing
shortages, as facilities compete for a limited pool of qualified healthcare
professionals, potentially compromising care quality.

Resource Allocation: Resources may become stretched thin, affecting the
ability of facilities to maintain high standards of care and invest in
improvements.

3. Regulatory and Planning Principles:

Certificate of Need (CON) Objectives: Missouri's CON program aims to
prevent unnecessary duplication of healthcare services, control costs, and
ensure the availability of quality care. Approving additional beds in an
overbedded area contradicts these objectives.

Community Needs Assessment: Decisions should be grounded in
comprehensive assessments of community needs, ensuring that expansions
align with actual demand.

4. Precedent and Policy Implications:

mailto:jfrances@lhsliving.org
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Setting a Precedent: Approving new facilities in overbedded areas may set a
precedent that undermines the integrity of the CON process, leading to
unchecked expansions elsewhere.

Policy Consistency: Upholding the CON guidelines ensures consistent and
fair application of healthcare planning policies across the state.

Conclusion: To maintain the stability and quality of long-term care services in Poplar Bluff, it
is crucial to adhere to established CON principles. Approving additional skilled nursing beds in
an overbedded area poses risks to existing providers, care quality, and the local economy.
Decisions should prioritize sustainable healthcare planning that truly reflects community
needs.

Thank you for your consideration on this matter,

-- 
Jay M. Frances
CEO, Owner
Legacy Health Services, Inc.
7003 Chadwick Drive
Suite 287
Brentwood, TN 37027
(314) 605-9939  Mobile
(314) 241-1131  Fax
jfrances@lhsliving.org

*STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY:*

The contents of this e-mail message and any attachments are confidential 
and are intended solely for addressee. The information may also be legally 
privileged. This transmission is sent in trust, for the sole purpose of 
delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission 
in error, any use, reproduction or dissemination of this transmission is 
strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please 
immediately *notify* the sender by reply e-mail or phone and *delete* this 
message and its attachments, if any.
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From: Molly Frances
To: CONP CONP
Subject: Opposition to proposed CON in Poplar Bluff, MO
Date: Wednesday, April 23, 2025 12:06:40 PM

To Whom it May Concern:

I am writing in opposition to granting a Certificate of Need for the proposed additional skilled
nursing facility in Poplar Bluff, Missouri. I am the Chief of Compliance for Legacy Health
Services, the managing company for Cedargate Healthcare located in Poplar Bluff, and
strongly oppose the granting of a Certificate of Need for a new facility in the community. The
CON process exists to prevent oversaturation of skilled facilities within a local community, to
safeguard service quality, and facilitate thoughtful, evidence based expansion of healthcare
services. Simply stated, the decision to approve additional beds should be determined by clear
and convincing demand. Poplar Bluff is already classified as an over bedded area under
Missouri's Certificate of Need criteria. Approving additional beds in an over bedded area
contradicts the very principles the CON process is designed to protect.

There are currently five skilled nursing facilities in Butler County, with a total of 520 licensed
beds. The combined average occupancy from the fourth quarter of 2024 is only 61.2%. These
figures clearly demonstrate that not only is there not a need for additional providers in the
area, but that current providers are operating at a census deficit. Additionally, community
census data shows that the population is consistently decreasing in Poplar Bluff and
surrounding areas, negating any arguments that the need for additional beds is population
driven. Existing facilities have used this data and their individual future projections to make
significant investments in their businesses and introducing an unnecessary provider in the area
can dilute already struggling occupancy rates and lead to financial instability in the local
market.

Granting a CON to an unnecessary provider will also exacerbate current staffing challenges.
The skilled nursing industry post COVID has struggled to secure qualified healthcare
professionals, and the existing facilities in Poplar Bluff are no exception. Allowing another
provider to open operations in the area will only compound the current staffing shortage,
potentially compromising the quality of care facilities can provide. A new provider in the area
will not add jobs, it will simply poach staff from existing providers that are already dealing
with workplace shortages.

The existing providers in Butler County have provided healthcare services for local seniors for
decades. My facility, Cedargate Healthcare, has served the community for over 30 years. If a
CON is granted for a new facility, there is an almost certainty that Cedargate Healthcare and
other existing facilities will be unable to remain viable. We urge you to uphold the
foundational principles of the CON process and deny the request for this unnecessary and
harmful expansion.

-- 
Molly Frances
Chief Compliance Officer
Legacy Health Services
7003 Chadwick Drive, Suite 287
Brentwood, TN 37027
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